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NOTICE OF MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 1st Annual General Meeting of DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN
PLC will be held virtually and streamed live from the offices of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc on
Thursday, November 4,2021 at 10:30 am to transact the following business;

1. To receive and adopt the Reports of the Directors, the Auditors and the Financial Statements
for the period ended 31st December 2020.

2. Toauthorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

3. To appoint three new Directors.

4, To consider and pass a resolution to support the renewal of Overdraft and Import Finance
Facilities at GCB Bank

DATED THIS 10th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

KWESI AUSTIN
(SECRETARY)
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CHAIRMAN'S SPEECH

OPENINGREMARKS

Distinguished shareholders, Ladies and
Gentlemen, on behalf of the Board of Directors
and my personal behalf, I welcome you to this
1st Annual General Meeting of Dannex Ayrton
Starwin Plc after the successful merger
between Dannex Limited, Ayrton Drug
Manufacturing Limited and Starwin Products
Limited. As you are aware, the three companies
merged their operations and became a legal
entity on 19th December 2019. The merged
entity which was launched and listed on the
Ghana Stock Exchange on 15th January 2020 is
trading under the name DAS Pharma. The
purpose of this new entity is to create a leading
pharmaceutical manufacturing and distribution
company in Ghana and the West Africa sub-
Region. It is my privilege therefore, to present
the Annual Report and Financial statements for
the first period of your company for the year
2020.

The year 2020 was a difficult year for the world
economy and Ghana was no exception. Most
businesses were negatively affected globally as
a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Companies
collapsed, profits plummeted and sadly a great
many people lost their lives.

Despite these challenges, the Board through
the management were able to safeguard the
safety and wellbeing of employees in ensuring
business continuity. The company ensured that
there were no job losses by putting in pragmatic
measuresto curbthe effect of the pandemic.

Our earnings however, fell short of our plans
and expectations for the period. The company
recorded a turnover of GH¢65,918,268.
Operating Loss was GHs1,817,483 and Loss for
the period amounted to GHS5, 158,244

DIVIDEND
Inview of the losses incurred during the period
your Board is unable to recommend any

dividend for the financial period ended 31st
December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plcis fully committed to
the Ghana Corporate Governance Directives
and principles. We believe our business has
attained its reputable public entity because it
has been built on transparency. We always put
the interest of our wider stakeholders
(suppliers, employees, regulatory bodies and
shareholders) at the forefront for every
decision we make. The company complies with
statutory requirements and has put in place a
system to protect the public, company assets
and allits stakeholders.

The company will continue to apply a sound
operational control system in order to
safeguard the interest of shareholders. As
indicated in the statement of responsibilities of
the directors and the notes to the accounts, the
company adopts standard accounting practices
to facilitate transparency in the disclosure of
information and the reliability of the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The main activity of the Board of Directors is to
provide clear directions and strategic
recommendations to the management team of
the company. Furthermore, one of the roles of
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the Board of Directors is to oversee the
company’s risk management control
measures. These control measures are revised
in a periodic manner to ensure that the
economic and the market environments are
considered.

The current Board is made up of five Directors.
The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are Executive Directors while the other three
are non-executive Directors.

To augment the Board in the effective running
of its sub-committees, three new persons are
being recommended for shareholders’
approval. We believe these persons will bring
to the Board a rich diversity of experiences
which will be of much value to the company.
Their brief profiles are available in this
brochure.

AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE

The Audit sub-Committee as set up by the
Board, is independent and acts as the
watchdog of the Board. The Chair is always an
independent non-executive member of the
Board. The duties of the sub-committee
include: oversight of the financial performance
and reporting of the company, taking
corrective steps to reinforce the results of the
internal and external audits. In addition, the
committee reviews the company’s progress
against the recommendations and directives in
the External Auditor’s report. The full Board
however, retains responsibility for the
decisions and outcomes of the Audit sub-
committee.

The Audit sub-committee played a key role in
the final review of the 2020 Financial
Statements.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc has a Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) policy that seeks to
involve the company, its employees and other
relevant stakeholders in the communities we
operate and in the country as a whole. The
objective is to support various activities from
recognized organizations, communities and
individuals as well as initiate own programmes
and projects that will bring lasting benefits to
communities and society.

Our CSR policy focuses on three key areas:
Health, Education,and Community Development.

During the year 2020, your company provided
assistance to the Covid-19 National Trust Fund,
Ghana Medical Association, health institutions
including the Kaneshie Polyclinic and the Ridge
Hospital, support for various organizations to
sponsor health walks and blood donations. We
will continue to support such laudable activities
inthe future.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc has internal control
systems for identifying, managing and
monitoring risks, these are intended to provide
reasonable assurance that the risks facing the
company are being controlled.

They also ensure that the company’s standard
operation procedures (SOP) and control
measures are followed and efficiently executed.

CODE OF BUSINESSETHICS

The company has a documented code of business
policies embedded in our HR Policy, to guide all
employees in the execution and performance of
their day to day duties. This code encompasses
all aspects of the business.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
TO THE MEMBERS OF DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC

The Directors present their report and the financial statements of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc ("the
Company") forthe 13-month period ended 31 December 2020.

Directors' responsibility statement

The Directors areresponsible for the preparation of the financial statementsthat give atrue and
fair view of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc, comprising the statements of financial position at 31
December 2020, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the 13-month period then ended, and the notes to the financial
statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes,
inaccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and inthe manner required by the
Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992). In addition, the directorsare responsible for the preparation of
thereport of thedirectors.

The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk
management.

The Directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company to continue asagoing concern
and have noreasonto believe thatthebusiness will not be agoing concern inthe year ahead.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements give a true and fair view
inaccordance withthe applicable financial reporting framework.

Nature of business
The Company is registered to carry on the business of manufacturing and selling of pharmaceutical
products.

Objective of the company
The objective of the Company is to care for life with brands, products and services which
significantly reduce disease burden and promote good health and vitality.

Shareholding structure

Dannex Ayrton StarwinPlc is 60% owned by Equatorial Cross Acquisitions Limited (ECA), 17.1%
owned by Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT).The remaining 22.9% isowned by
anumber of institutional and private investors.

Financial statements/Businessreview
The financial results of the Company for the period ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the
financial statements, highlights of which are as follows:

GHc¢
Loss beforetax (5,031,278)
Loss after tax (5,158,244)
Total Assets 52,296,518
Total Liabilities 45,510,879
Total Equity 6,785,639
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Financial statements/Business review (cont'd)
The Directors donotrecommend the payment of dividend.
The Directors consider the state of the Company's affairs to be satisfactory.

Particulars of entries in the Interests Register during the financial period
The entity did not maintain an Interests Register because nodirector hadinterests inany contract.

Related party transactions

Information regarding directors' interests in ordinary shares of the Company and remuneration is
disclosedin Note 26 to the financial statements. The Board Chairman owns 100% shares in Equatorial
Cross Acquisitions, which holds 60.04% shares of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc. Other than service
contracts, no director had a material interest in any contract during the period. Related party
transactions and balances arealsodisclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements.

Corporate social responsibility and code of ethics

Atotal of GH¢ 180,000 was spentunder the Company's social responsibility programme with key
focus oneducation and health. With the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company engaged some
of its social partners to make contributions to support selected institutions in the fight against the
pandemic.

Board of Directors

Profile
Executive Qualification Outside board and management position
Nik Amarteifio BA Economics

MBA -Finance Board Member, GCB Bank Limited

and Marketing Board Member, N.F.B Company Limited

Board Member, OmniMedia Company Limited
Board Member, Yaro Capital Ghana Limited
Board Member, Consult Ghana Limited
Chairman, Equatorial Cross Acquisitions Limited
Vice Chairman, Ghana Agro Foods Company

(GAFCO)
Daniel ApeagyeiKissi | BSc (Hons) Mechanical | NIL
Engineering
Non-Executive
AlexK.Braye Bonney | Dip.Regulatory Board Director, Ghana Water Company Limited
Economics
Dr.Barima Afranie BSc Chemistry (MCL) Gulf Integrated Biochemical Solutions Limited
PhD Pharmacy Entrance Pharmaceuticals & Research Centre
Amarteokor Amarteifio | Dip. Social Work NIL
BA Social Work
MA Social Work
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Biographicalinformation of directors

Age category Number of directors
41-60 years 1

Above 60 years 4

Role of the Board

The Directors are responsible for the long term success of the Company, determining the strategy
direction of the Company and reviewing the operating, financial and risk performance. There is a
formal schedule of matters reserved for the board of directors, including approval of the
Company's annual business plan, the Company's strategy, acquisitions, disposals and capital
expenditure projects above certain thresholds, all guarantees, treasury policies, the financial
statements, the Company's dividend policy, transactions involving the issue or purchase of Company
shares, borrowing powers, appointments to the Board, alterationstothe memorandum and articles
of association, legal actions brought by or against the Company, and the scope of delegation to
Board committees and the management committee. Responsibility for the development of policy
and strategy. Operational management is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer who is supported
inthis regard by an Executive Committee currently comprised of 1 (one) Executive Director and 6 (six)
Senior Managers.

Internalcontrol systems

The Directors have overall responsibility for the Company's internal control systems and annually
reviews their effectiveness, including a review of financial, operational, compliance and risk
management controls. The implementation and maintenance of the risk management and
internal control systems are the responsibility of the executive directors and other senior
management. The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control systems, including controls related to financial, operational and reputational risks
identified by the Company as at the reporting date and no significant failings or weaknesses were
identified during this review.

Directors' performance evaluation

Every year the performance and effectiveness of the Board of Directors ("the Board), its
committees andindividual directorsis evaluated. The evaluation is conducted by the completion of
detailed and comprehensive written survey questionnaires. The results of the evaluation are shared
with all members of the Board. Overall, it was noted that the board of directors and its
committees were operating in an effective manner and performing satisfactorily, with no major
issues identified.

Conflicts of interest

The Company has established appropriate conflicts authorisation procedures, whereby actual or
potential conflicts are regularly reviewed, and authorisations sought as appropriate. During the
period, no such conflicts arose, and no such authorisations were sought.

Board balance and independence

The composition of the board of directors and its Committees is regularly reviewed to ensure that
the balance and mix of skills, independence, knowledge and experience is maintained. The Board
Chairman is not independent and all, with the exception of one of the non-executive directors are
independent as pertains to the management of the company. The continuing independence and
objective of the Judgement of the non-Executive Directors is being reviewed by the Board of
Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Capacity building of directors to discharge their duties

On appointment to the Board, Directors are provided with full, formal and tailored programmes of
induction, to enable them gain in-depth knowledge about the Company's business, the risks
and challenges faced, the economic environment and the legal and regulatory environmentin which
the Company operates. Programmes of strategic and other reviews, together with the other
training programmes provided during the period, ensure that Directors continually update their
skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Company's businesses. This further provides insights
about the industry and other developmentstoenable them effectively fulfill their role on the Board
and committees of the Board.

Auditor

The Audit Committee has responsibility delegated from the board of directors for making
recommendations on the appointment, reappointment, removal and remuneration of the external
auditor. KPMG has been appointed as auditor of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc and this is the
Company's first period of audit. Prior to the merger of the three entities, KPMG was the auditor of
Dannex Limited for 4 years and Starwin Products Limited for over 10 years. KPMG does not
provide non-audit services to the Company.

Auditfees
The audit fee for the period ended 31 December 2020 is GH¢180,000.

Merger of Dannex Limited, Ayrton Drug Manufacturing Limited and Starwin Products Limited

On 7 June 2018, the Boards of Dannex Limited, Ayrton Drug Manufacturing Limited and Starwin
Products Limited announced that they had agreed to the terms of a recommended merger of the
three companies to be effected by way of a Ghanaian Scheme of Amalgamation under Section
231 to 235 of the Companies Act 1963 (Act 179) and that on conclusion of the Merger, the Merged
Company will be known as Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc.

Shareholders of Ayrton Drug Manufacturing Limited and Starwin Products Limited attheir separate
extraordinary general meetings held on 27 December 2018 agreed to the Scheme of Amalgamation
while in the case of Dannex Limited, its shareholders endorsed the arrangement on 30 January
2019.The High Court of Justice (Commercial Division) subsequently confirmed the merger on 25
November 2019.

The merger, which has brought about the new entity-Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc has been approved
by the Ghana Stock Exchange (GSE) and the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
Pursuant to the merger, the Companies have transferred their total assets and total liabilities
at book values to the newly merged entity effective 19 December 2019. Dannex Ayrton Starwin
Plc was listed onthe Ghana Stock Exchangeon 15 January 2020.

Approval of the report of the directors
Thereport of the Directors of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc was approved by the Board of Directors on

...... 20 Jwng | 2021 and signed on their behalf by:

Signature
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC

KPMG

Reportonthe Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc("the Company"), which
comprise the statement of financial position at 31 December 2020, and the statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows forthe 13 month period then
ended, and the notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes, as setoutonpages17 to65.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the 13 month period then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) andinthe manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA
Code), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Ghana and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe thatthe audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, inour professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2020

__




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Revenue Recognition (GH¢65,918,268)
Refer to Note 8 to the financial statements

_The key audit matter | How the matter was addressed in our audit == |
Revenue is measured based on the Our principal audit procedures included the following; :
consideration specified in a contract with
a Customer, —  ldentifying relevant controls over the revenue recognition

) ) process for all the revenue streams, evaluating the design and
The Company recognises revenue when implementation, and testing the operating effectiveness of these
goods are delivered to a customer and controls;
thus control has been transferred. There | —  For g sample of significant sales transactions, tracing the
s a time lag between issues of goods to transactions back to source documents to ensure that the
distributors and receipts of those goods transactions actually occurred, and the amounts were accurate;
close to the year end. Revenue may be —  Performing predictive analysis on individual product lines af
recorded when control has not been the company: :

transferred to the customer. L . : i
R A —  Performing gap analysis on revenue details for the period;

—  Assessing whether sales transactions on either side of the
balance sheet date as well as credit notes issued after year end
had been recorded in the appropriate accounting peried; and

—  Evaluating the adequacy of the Company*s disclosures on
reventié recognition in the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Ethum, accuracy and valuation of inventory (GH¢13,645,760)
Refer to Mote 13 to the financial statements

The key audit matier Heow the matter was addressed in owr audit
The Company keeps many inventory —  Ewaluating the design and implementation and testing the
lines with significant values for the operating effectiveness of controls over periodic inventory counts
relevant segments. and management reviews of inventory reconciliation;

— Observing year-end inventory counts and checked that the
Inventory may not be measured physical quantities agrée with the system quantities per the
appropriately due to nonexistence, Company's records, On & sample basis, recomputing the unit cost |
obsolescence or inaccurate unit costs of inventory used in the year-end inventory valuation by agresing |
assigned 1o items with significant values. the costs to supporting documentation such as purchase invoices

and landed costs; and

— Enguiring inte identified slow moving inventory and assessing
reasonableness of impairment allowance recognised on such
inventory.

— Considering the adequacy of disclosures in relation to inventory
recognised in the financial statements.

Other Information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

Report of the Directors as required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and Corporate Information
which we obtained at the date of this report. The Chairman's statement, Chief Executive Officer's
statement, Audit Committee's report and Corporate Governance statement which we expect to be
available to us after that date. The other information does not include the financial statements and

our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2020

__



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based onthe work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
inthis regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view inaccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and inthe manner required
by the Companies Act,

2019 (Act 992), and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Company ortocease operations, or have norealistic alternative buttodo so.

The Directors areresponsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due tofraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assesstherisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion onthe effectiveness of the Company'sinternal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. Ifwe conclude thata material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
weidentify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
takentoeliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thata
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweighthe public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Compliance with the requirements of Section 137 of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992)

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept, so far as appears from our examination of
those books.

The statements of financial position and profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in
agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We areindependent of the Company under audit pursuant to Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2019
(Act992).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Labaran Amidu (ICAG/P/1472).

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF:

KPMG: (ICAG/F/2021/038)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

13 YIYIWADRIVE, ABELENKPE
P OBOXGP 242, ACCRA
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 13 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

Note
Revenue 8
Cost of Sales 9
Gross profit
Other operating income 12
Selling and distribution expenses 10
Administrative expenses 11
Impairment loss on trade receivables 25
Operating loss
Finance income 13
Finance costs 13
Loss before tax
Income tax expense 14a
Loss for the period
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 43
Related income tax 14b
Equity mnvestment at FVOCI
net change in fair value 17
Related income tax |4b
Other comprehensive income

for the period, net of tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the period
Basic/Diluted carnings per share (GHg per share) 30

The notes on pages 21 to 65 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2020
GHe

65,918,268
(36,631,739)

e

20,286,509

416 5013
(8,043,808)
23,548,512)

68,735

(1,817,483}

1,236
(3.215.031)

(5,031,278)

(126.966)

(5,158,244

245,873
(61.468)

488,881
(167,783)

505,503

(4,652,741)

(0.0609)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2020

2020
Assets MNote GHg
Property, plent end equipment 15 21,221,853
[ntangible assets 16 185,229
Equity Investment at FYIOCI 17 2,416,650
Non-current assets 24,033,732
Inventories 18 13,545,760
Trade and other receivables 1a 13,715,929
Amount due from related party 26 263,753
Cash and cash equivalents 20 637,344
Current assets 28,262,786
Total assets 52,295,518
Equity
Share capital 24 33,058,701
Fuir value regerve 24 121,099
Other reserves 24 184,405
Retained earnings 24 (26,778,566)
Taotal equity 6,785,535
Liahilities
Lease liabilities 152 109,169
Loans and borrowings 21 | 4,656,190
Employee benefit obligations 23 4,380,548
Deferred rax lebilitics 14e B3 464
Non-current Habilithes 19,961,371
Lezse lisbifities 15¢ 40,008
Bank averdraft 0 5,596,337
Current tax Liabilities i4d 761,180
Loens and borrowings i 4,108 802
Trade and ather paysbles 22 13,905,177
Amolnt due to related parly 24 1,137,914
Current liabilities 25,549 508
Total liabillties 45,510,879
Total equity and Habilities 52,296,518

Diwie. Hetéter K

Mam

Sienature

The notes on pages 21 to 65 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 13 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

Share Fair Other Retained Total
Capital Value Reserves Earnings Equity
Reserve

GH¢ ¢ GH¢ GH¢ GHe

Balance ai 19 December 2019 33.058,701 - - [21,620,322) 11 438,380
L.oss for the period - = - (5158244} (5.158,244)

Other eomprehensive income

Changes in fair value on financial asset at FYOCI 321,009 - - 32099
Remeasurement of emploves beneiits 184,405 - 184,405
Total comprehensive income for the period - 321,049 184,405 (5,158.,244) (4.652.741)
Balance at 31 Deeember 2020 33,058,701 184,405 (26,778,566) 6,785,639

121,009

The notes on pages 21 to 65 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 13 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

2020
Mote GH¢
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss after taxation (5,158,244)
Adjustments for;
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment s 1,438,270
Depreciation on leases 15 342,093
Amortisation-Intangibles 16 143,998
MNet finance cost 13 2,504,889
Unrealised exchange difference 1,607
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15k (83,3500
Write off of property, plant and equipment 15 5,678
Income tax expense [da 126,966
(674,093)
Changes in:
Inventories 18 1,776,878
Trade and other receivables 19 (970,337)
Amount due from related party 26 -
Trade and other payables 22 1,684,106
Amount due to related party 26 -
Employee benefit obligations 23 379,765
Cash generated from operating activities 2,196,319
Interest paid 3 (1,857,226)
Income taxes paid 14d (1,706,269)
Net cash used in operating activities (1,367,176}
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 15b 83,350
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 15 (2,903,633)
Acquisition of intangible assets 16 {86,400}
Net cash used in investing activities (2,906.683)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 21 11,426,718
Repayment of borrowings 21 (7.242,694)
Payment on lease liabilities 15¢ 40,008
Net cash from financing activities 4,224.032
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (49,827
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning (4,907,559}
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held (1,607)
Cash and ecash equivalents at 31 December 20 {4,958,993)

The notes on pages 21 to 65 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 13 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. REPORTING ENTITY
Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc ("the Company") is a company incorporated and domiciled in
Ghana. The Company's registered office can be found on Page 6ofthe annual report. The
Company is primarily involved in the manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products.
The financial statements comprise the individual financial statements of the Company as at
and for the period ended 31 December 2020.

Dannex Ayrton Starwinis listed on the Ghana Stock Exchange.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
This is the Company's first set of financial statements and have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and in the manner
required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992).

3. FUNCTIONAL ANDPRESENTATION CURRENCY
These financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedis, which is the Company's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Ghana Cedi, unless
otherwiseindicated.

4. USE OF JUDGEMENTS ANDESTIMATES
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Company's accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively.

(a) Assumption and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at 31 December 2020
that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the nextfinancial yearisincluded inthe following notes:

« Note 23-measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions;

» Note 14 - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit
against which deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be
utilized; and

« Note 25 - measurement of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance for trade receivables:
key assumptions indetermining the weighted -average loss rate.

(I) Measurement of fair values
When measuring fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable
market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levelsin a
fair value hierarchy based on the followinginputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

(b) Level 2:inputsotherthanquoted pricesincluded in Level 1 thatareobservable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

(c) Level 3:inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservableinputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair measurementis categorisedin its entiretyin
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

The Company recognised transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy attheend of
thereporting period during which the change hasoccurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in
Note 25-Financialinstruments.

5. BASISOF MEASUREMENT
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
the following materialitems:
« Financial assets classified as equity investments at FVOCI, measured at fair value.
« Employee benefit obligations recognised at the present value of the defined benefit
obligations.

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES
The accounting policies setout below have been adopted and applied inthese financial
statements, unlessotherwise stated.

6.1 Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the
Company at the exchangerate at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange differencesarisingontranslation arerecognisedin profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency
aretranslated usingthe exchange rate atthedate of thetransaction. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
retranslated tothe functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

6.2 Revenue from customers

The Company generates revenue primarily fromthe sale of pharmaceutical products. The
Company sells its products primarily to two categories of customers: Open Market
(Pharmacies and Chemical Sellers) and Institutions (Hospitals and Regional Medical
Stores).

The Company recognises revenue when the goods are delivered and have been accepted by
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the customer who acknowledges receipt by signing a waybill or the invoice. The Company
considersits sale of goods as asingle performance obligation asits goods are not separately
identifiable anddistinct. Invoices are generated as and when the pharmaceutical products
are sold. Invoices are usually payable within 60 days. Returned goods are usually faulty and
near expiry products.

6.3 Employee benefits

(i) Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company pays fixed contributions to a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by
employees.

a. Social security contribution
Under a national pension scheme, the Company contributes 13% of employee's
basic salary to the Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT) for
employee pensions. The Company's obligationis limited to the relevant contributions,
which have been recognised inthe financial statements. The pension liabilities
and obligations, however, rest with SSNIT.

b. Tier 3Pension fund and saving scheme
The Company have a Tier 3 Pension fund for staff and management under which the
Company contributes 6.5% of employee's basic salary to the scheme.

(iii) Defined benefit plan
The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of the future benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount
and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation resultsin a
potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value
of the economic benefit available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
future economic benefit, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of asset
ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other
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comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest expense (Income
on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation atthe beginning of the annual period
tothe then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in
the net defined liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and
benefit payment.

Net interest expense and other expenses relating to defined benefit plans are
recognisedin profit orloss. When the benefits of a planare changed orwhen aplan
is curtailed, the resulting change in benefits that relates to the past service or the
gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlementoccurs.

(iv) Termination

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. Termination benefits are expensed at the
earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Company recognised cost for restructuring. Inthe case of anoffer madeto
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than
12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

(v) Other long-term benefits
The Company's obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than
pension plansis the amount of future benefit that employees have earnedin return for
their services in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. The discount rate is the rate on long dated
Government of Ghana bonds. Remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss in the
periodin which they arise.

6.4 Property, plantand equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes; the cost of
materials and direct labour, and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to a working condition for its intended use. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

Where parts of anitem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plantand equipment.

Depreciationis charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of each part of anitem of property, plant and equipment. Freehold land is not depreciated. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

« Right-of-use assets 50-91 years
+ Buildings 2%-3%

e Laboratory, plant and machinery 10% - 20%

« Motor vehicle 20%- 25%

e Furniture and equipment 15%- 20%

« Computer equipment 25%- 33.3%
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Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Property, plantand equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to flow to the Company from either their use or disposal. Gains or losses on
derecognition of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal, if applicable, with the carrying amount of the item and are recognised directly in profit or
loss.

6.5 Intangible assets
Intangible assets (Computer software and trademarks) that are acquired by the Company
are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including
expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in the profit or loss
asincurred.

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets. Computer software development costs recognised as assets are
amortised overtheir estimated useful lives, whichdoes notexceed fouryears.

Trademarkis amortised over an expected useful life of 3years.

6.6 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
selling price less costs to sell. Cost is determined using the weighted average method and
includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs
and othercosts in bringing them to their existing location and condition.Inthe case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of
overheads based on normal operating capacity.

6.7 Leases
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contractis, or contains, a
lease. Acontract is, or contains, alease if the contract conveys the rightto controlthe use
of anidentified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

e the contract involves the use of identified asset- this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the
assetis notidentified;

¢ the Company hastheright to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of
the asset throughout the period of use;and

¢ the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The company has the right when
it has the decision* making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what
purpose the assetis usedis predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of
the asset if either:
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- theCompanyhastherighttooperate theasset; or
- the Company designed the asset inaway that predetermines how and for what purpose
itwill be used.

The Company asalessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices.

The Company recognises aright-of-use assetandalease liability atthecommencementdate. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs attributable to the lease contract and an estimate of costs todismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which itis located, less any lease
incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term. Inaddition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease
liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid atthe commencementdate, discounted using the interestrate implicitin the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
Company usesits incremental borrowing rate asthe discountrate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from
various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease
andtype of the asset leased.

Lease paymentsincludedinthe measurementof the lease liability comprise of:

« Fixed repayment,includingin-substance fixed payments

- Theeffects of prepayments or rent-free periods

e Contractually-stipulatedincreases inrent payments

« Leasepaymentsinanoptional renewal periodif the Companyisreasonably certaintoexercise an
exercise option.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. A re-
measurement of the lease liability and right-of-use asset is required under the following
circumstances:

(a) Achange infuture lease paymentamount duetoamarketrentreview;
(b) Achangein fixed future lease payment amount due torent being linked to aninflation index;
(c) Achange in expected lease term (e.g.no longer expect to exercise extension option or

now expect toexercise an early termination option).

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
current amount of the right-of-use asset oris recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has
been reduced tozero.
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The Company presentsright-of-use asset in property and equipmentand lease liabilities in the
statement of financial position.

Shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of
low-value assetsand short-term leases of property that have aleaseterm of 12 months or less.
The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

6.8 Financialinstruments

(1) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company
becomes apartytothe contractual provisions of the instrument.

Afinancial asset (unless it isatrade receivable without a significant financing component)
or financial liability is initially measured at fair values plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component s initially measured at the transaction price.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is notdesignatedasatFVTPL:

itisheld withinabusiness model whose objectiveistohold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal andinterestonthe principal amountoutstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirement to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

(b) Financial assets - Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed, and information is provided to management. The information
consideredincludes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those
policies in practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on
earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
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matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities
or expected cash outflows orrealising cash flowsthrough the sale of the assets;
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's
management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held withinthat business model) andhow those risks are managed;

how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows
collected;and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the
assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

(c) Financial assets - assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal andinterest
For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time
value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during aparticular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs | e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Company considers:

e -contingenteventsthat would change the amountortiming of cash flows;

e terms thatmayadjustthe contractual coupon rate,including variable-rate features;

e prepaymentandextension features; and

e terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the sole payments of principal and interest
criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the contract.

Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par
amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest
(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is
treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is
insignificant atinitial recognition.
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(d) Financial assets- Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets atamortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised costis reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment arerecognisedin profitor loss. Anygainorloss
onderecognitionisrecognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends arerecognised asincome
in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other netgains and losses arerecognisedin FVOCI and are never reclassified
toprofitorloss.

(e) Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognitionis alsorecognisedin profit or loss.

Other financial Lliabilities comprise trade and other payables, related party payables and bank
overdraft.

(iii) Derecognition

(a) Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, orit transfers therightstoreceive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its
statement of financial position but retains either all or substantially all the risks and rewards
of thetransferred assets. Inthese cases, transferred assets are notderecognised.

(b) Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when
its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case anew financial liability based onthe modified termsisrecognised
atfairvalue.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.
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(c) Impairment
() Non-derivative financial assets
Financial instruments and contract assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for bank
balances for which creditrisk (i.e. therisk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition are measured at 12 month ECLs.

Loss allowances fortradereceivables are always measured atanamountequaltolifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the creditrisk of a financial asset hasincreased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience
and informed credit assessmentand including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 30 days pastdue.

The Company considers a financial assettobeindefault when:

- thedebtor isunlikely topayits creditobligationstothe Company in full due to bankruptcy

- there areadverse changesinthe paymentstatus of debtors

« the financial asset is more than 90 days past due (For trade receivables for open market
customers, defaultis 183 daysandabove. Forinstitutional customers 365 daysandabove)

The Company considers a debt security tohave low creditrisk when its credit rating is equivalent to
the globally understood definition of "investment grade”.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that resultfrom all possible default events over the expected life of
afinancialinstrument.

12 month ECLs arethe portion of ECLs thatresult from default events that are possible withinthe 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter periodif the expected life of the instrument is less than
12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Company is exposed tocredit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

ECLsarediscounted atthe effectiveinterestrate of the financial asset.
Credit-impairedfinancial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
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detrimentalimpact onthe estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence thata financial assetis credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

 significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

« abreachof contract such asadefaultor being morethan 90 days past due

e the restructuring of aloan oradvance bythe Company onterms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

« itisprobablethattheborrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The grosscarrying amount of a financial assetis written off whenthe Company has noreasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant
recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery
of amountsdue.

6.8 Financial instruments (cont'd) Measurement of ECLs (cont'd) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the
assetand settle the liability simultaneously.

6.9 Financeincome and cost
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, bank charges and interest
expense on lease liability recognisedin profitor loss.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset that takes a substantial time to be prepared for use, are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying assets are recognised in profit or loss using the
effectiveinterest method.

Finance income compriseinterestincome on funds invested or held in bank accounts, dividend
income, and net foreign exchange gains.

The Company has presented interest expense on the lease liability separately from the
depreciation charge for the right-of-use asset.

6.10 Income Tax
Income tax expense on profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
isrecognised in profit or loss except to the extent thatit relates to items recognised directly
in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity.

Current taxis the expected tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the period,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted atthereporting date and any adjustment to
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tax payable inrespect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivableis
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty
related toincome taxes, if any. Itis measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted atthe reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.
Currenttax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax isrecognised ontemporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of
goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the
foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to
be applied to temporary differences when they reverse.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax loses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences only to the extent thatitis probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent thatitis no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they canbe used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences, differences whenthey reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted
atthereporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on
the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or the tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

6.11 Earnings pershare

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

6.12 Operating profit
Operating profit is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue-producing
activities of the Company as well as other income and expenses related to operating
activities. Operating profit excludes net finance costs and income taxes.
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6.13 Segmentreporting
Operating segments reflect the Company's management structure and the way financial
information is regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer. Operating segments are
reportedinamanner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer
(Chief Operating Decision-Maker (CODM)).

The Company operates as a single business unit that manufactures Syrups, Tablets,
Creams, Suspension, Disinfectant, Lozenges, Powders, Capsules and Emulsion.

6.14 Newstandardand interpretationissued notyet effective
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2021 and have not been applied in
preparing these financial statements. Those which may be relevant to the Company are set
out below. The Company does not plan to adopt these standards early. These will be adopted
inthe period that they become mandatory unless otherwise indicated:

Standard/Interpretation Effective date
Periods beginning
onor after

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous contracts - Cost of Fulfillinga Contract| I January 2022

IASI amendment Classification of liabilities as current or non- I January 2023

current

IAS 16 amendment Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds 1 January 2022

before Intended Use

TIAS 8amendment Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023

IAS 1 andIFRS Disclosure Initiative: Accounting 1 January 2023

Practice Statement 2 Policies

amendment

IFRS 16 amendment COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
(subsequent
amendment
effective 1
April 2021)

Onerous contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to /AS 37)

Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board, clarify that the costs of fulfilling a contract’ when

assessing whether a contractis onerous comprise both:

- theincremental costs - e.g. direct labour and materials; and

- anallocation of other direct costs-e.g. anallocation of the depreciation charge for anitem of
property, plantand equipment used in fulfilling the contract.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after I January 2022 to
contracts existing at the date when the amendments are first applied. At the date of initial
application, the cumulative effect of applying the amendments will be recognised as an opening
balance adjustment to retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate. The
comparatives will not be restated. Earlier application is permitted.
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The Company isyettoassess the potentialimpact onthe financial statements.

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to/AS 1)

Under existing IAS I requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period. As part of its amendments, the Board has removed the
requirement for a right to be unconditional and instead, now requires that a right to defer
settlement musthave substanceandexist atthe end of thereporting period.

There is limited guidance on how to determine whether a right has substance and the assessment
may require managementto exercise interpretive judgement.

The existing requirement to ignore management's intentions or expectations for settling a
liability when determining its classification is unchanged. The amendments are to be applied
retrospectively from the effective date.

The Companyis yetto assess the potential impact on the financial statements.

Property, Plantand Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)

The amendment prohibits deducting from the cost of anitem of property, plantand equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or
loss.

Proceeds fromselling items before the related item of property, plantand equipmentis available for
use should be recognised in profit or loss, together with the costs of producing those items. IAS 2
Inventories should be appliedinidentifying and measuring these production costs.

Companies will therefore need to distinguish between:

e costs associated with producing and selling items before the item of property, plant and
equipmentis available for use;

« and costs associated with making the item of property, plant and equipment available for its
intended use.

Making this allocation of costs may require significant estimation and judgement.
The Companyisyettoassess the potentialimpactonthe financial statements.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after L January 2022, with earlier
application permitted. The amendments apply retrospectively, butonly to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statementsin whichthe company first applies the amendments.

Definition of accounting estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

Distinguishing between accounting policies and accounting estimates isimportant because changes
in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively, while changes in accounting estimates
are applied prospectively.

The changes to IAS 8 focus entirely on accounting estimates and clarify the following:

« The definition of a change in accounting estimates is replaced with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amountsin financial
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statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty".

« Entitiesdevelop accounting estimatesif accounting policies require itemsin financial statements
tobe measuredinaway thatinvolves measurementuncertainty.

« TheBoard clarified thatachange in accountingestimate that results from new information
or new developments is notthe correction of an error. In addition, the effects of achange in
an input or a measurement technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in
accounting estimatesif they donotresult fromthe correction of prior period errors.

« Achange inanaccounting estimate may affect only the current period's profit or loss, or the profit
or loss of both the current period and future periods. The effect of the change relating to the
current period is recognised as income or expense in the current period. The effect, if any, on
future periodsis recognised asincome or expense inthose future periods.

The effects of changes in inputs and/or measurement techniques are changes in accounting
estimates. The definition of accounting policies remains unchanged.

The Companyisyettoassessthe potential impacton the financial statements.

The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier
application permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes
in accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which
the company applies theamendments.

Disclosure Initiative: Accounting Policies (Amendmentsto IAS1and

IFRS Practice Statement 2)

Making information in financial statements more relevant and less cluttered has been one of the
key focus areas for the International Accounting StandardsBoard (the Board).

The Board hasissued amendmentsto IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and an update to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements to help companies provide useful
accounting policy disclosures. The key amendmentsto IAS 1 include:

e requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies;

« several paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material accounting policy
informationandto give examples of when accounting policy informationis likely to be material;

- clarifying thataccounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions
arethemselvesimmaterial and as such need not be disclosed;

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves material toacompany's financial statements;

e accounting policy information may be material because of its nature, even if the related
amounts areimmaterial.

e accounting policy information is material if users of anentity's financial statements would
need ittounderstand other materialinformationinthe financial statements;and

- the amendments clarify thatif an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy information,
suchinformation shall not obscure material accounting policy information.

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional
examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are
consistent with the refined definition of material.
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The Company is yet to assess the potentialimpact onthe financial statements.
Theamendments are effective from1 January 2023 but may be applied earlier.

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16)

The amendments introduce an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts
for rentconcessionsthatare adirect consequence of COVID-19. A Lesseethat applies the practical
expedient is not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifications, and
accounts for themin accordance with other applicable guidance. The resulting accounting will depend
onthe details of the rent concession.

The practical expedientwillonly apply if:

« therevised considerationis substantially the same or less than the original consideration;

+ the reduction in lease payments relates to payments due on or before 30 June 2021; (a
subsequent amendment released in March 2021 has extended this date to 30 June 2022) and

» noothersubstantive changes have been made to the terms of the lease.

Lessees applying the practical expedientare required todisclose:

- that fact, if they have applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions and, if not,
the nature of the contracts to which they have applied the practical expedient; and

- theamountrecognisedin profitorloss for the reporting period arising from application of the
practical expedient.

Theoriginal version of the practical expedient was, and remains, optional. However, the subsequent
amendment is, in effect, not optional. This is because a lessee that chose to apply the practical
expedient introduced by the 2020 amendment would have to consistently apply the extension to
similar rent concessions.

The subsequent amendment is applicable retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying it being recognisedin opening retained earnings. The disclosure requirements of Paragraph
28(f) I of IAS 8 AccountingPolicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors do not apply
on initial application of the subsequentamendment. Lessees may needto reverse previous lease
modification accounting if arentconcession wasineligible for the original practical expedient under
the 2020 amendmentbut becomes eligible asaresult of the extension.

The Company isyettoassessthe potentialimpact on the financial statements.

The amendments are effective for periods beginning on orafter 1  June 2020 (the subsequent
amendment is effective on or after I April 2021), with earlier application permitted. A lessee
applies the amendments retrospectively and recognises the cumulative effect of initially applying
theminthe opening retained earnings of the reporting period in which they are first applied.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

6.14 New standard and interpretation issued not yet effective (cont’d)

The Company is vet to assess the potential impact on the financial statements.

The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 (the subsequent amendment is
effective on or after | April 2021), with earlier application permitted. A lessee applies the amendments
retrospectively and recognises the cumulative effect of initially applying them in the opening retained earnings of
the reporting period in which they are first applied.

8. REVENUE

fa) Revenue stream

The Company generates revenue primarily from the sale of pharmaceutical products

2020
GHge

Revenue from sale of goods 65,918,268

fh)  Disaggregation of revenug from contracts with cusiomers

Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary customer profiles and timing of revenue
recognition (which is at a point in time).

2020
GH¢
Type of customer
Open Market 63,877,361
Institutions 2,040,907
65,918,268
9. COST OF SALES
2020
GHg
Caost of raw material consumed 24,072,098
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,056,357
Staff Cost (11(iW) 6,772,501
Overheads 4 730,803
36,631,759
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10. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

2020
GH¢
Advertising and promotion 459,967
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 96,530
Other selling and distribution expenses 1,062,112
Hotel Accommodation and allowances 1,147,688
Motor Vehicle Expenses 1,730,641
Rents, rate and insurance 336,801
Repairs and maintenance 909,248
Staff costs (11(i)) 2,300,821
8,043,808

11. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2020
GH¢
Auditor's remuneration 180,000
Amortisation of intangible assets 143,998
COVID 19 expenses 688,371
Communication 049,618
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 627,476
Directors' remuneration 3,350,885
Donations 13,139
Net Exchange difference 11,765
Legal and professional expenses 990,890
Other administrative expenses 969,161
Penalties and Fines 00,426
Repairs and maintenance 1,395,960
Rents, rates and insurance 695,307
Sanitation 346,702
Security 683,790
Subscriptions and renewals 590,349
Staff costs (11(i)) 11,425,093
Travelling and transport 433,823
Utilities 243,081
Asset write off of property, plant and equipment 0678

23,548,512
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11. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (CONT’'D)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11(i)  Staff costs under cost of sales, selling and distribution and general and administrative

Cost of sales (Note 9)
Selling and distribution expenses (Note 10)
General and administrative expenses (Note 11)

This is made up of:
Salaries and wages

Retirement benefit costs:

- Tier 3 pension contributions

- Social Security contributions

Defined benefits and other long term benefits:

Defined benefits
Other long term benefits

The average number of employees at the end of the period were 633.

12. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Sundry income
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Included in sundry income is bad debt recovered and proceeds from scraps.

6,772,501
2,300,821
11,425,093

20,498,415

17,686,926

704,469
1,438,351

471,531
197,138

20,498,415

2020
GH¢

336,243
83,350

B el

419,593

L T—
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13. FINANCE INCOME AND COST
Finance income

Interest on bank accounts

Finance cost

Interest on loans and borrowings

Interest expense on leases
Bank charges

14. TAXATION

{(a) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense

Total tax expenss

(b} Amounts recognised in OCI

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability
Equity investments at FVOCI — net change in fair valuc

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Loss

Carparation tax rate at 25%

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Tax exempt income

Income Lax credit

Elfactive tax

EBefore
Tax
Crredit
GHg

245,873
488,881

734,754

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020
GH¢

1,236

—

(2,504,888)
(14911)
(695,232)

(3,215,031)

2020
H¢
126,266
126,966
Tax Net
(Expense) af
fax
GH¢ GHe
(61,468) 84,405
(167,783) 321,099
{229.251)

505,503

(3,001,278

(1,237,820)

2,216,113
(831,328)

126,966

(3%)
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(d)  Current tax assets/ liabilities

The movement on the current tax account was as follows:

Balance at 19 Payments/WHT Charged Balance at
December Credit during to P/L 31 December
201% the year account 2020
GH¢ GH¢ GHy¢ GH¢

Income tax
Upto 2018 1,342,725 - - 1,342,725
2019 1,124,724 - = 1,124,724
2020 - (1,706,269) - (1,706,269)
2,467,449 (1,706,269) - Tal,180

(e) Movement in deferred tax balances

Net balance Recognised In Net  Deferred Deferred
at 19 Profit/ 0Cl (asset)/ tax lax
December 2019 Loss liabilities liabilities (assets)

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Property, plant and equipment 252,165 2,287,684 - 2,539,849 2,539,849 -
Emplovee benefit oblizations (151,261} (1,033,669) 61,468 (1,123,462) - (1,123,462}
Fair value gain 436,380 - 167,783 604,163 604,163 -
Tax losses - (620,266) - (620,268) - (620,266)
Inventories - (2,632) - (2,632) - (2.632)
Trade receivables (T8,037) (504,151) - (582,188) - [5R2,138)
Net tax liabilities (assets) 459,247 126,966 229,251 BI5464 1,144,012 (2,328,548)

The opening balances were iransferred from the individual entities and have been combined into the new entity,

(N Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items because it is not probable thart future
taxable profit will be available against which the Company can use the henefits therefrom.

2020
Giross amount Tax effect
GH¢ GIH¢
Tax losses 2,481,063 620,266
(g) Tax losses carried forward
GHe Expire date

Tax losses — 2020 2,481,063 2025
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Depreciation has been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as follows:
2020

GH¢

Cost of sales (Note 9) 1,056,357
Selling and distribution expenses (Mote 10) 96,530
Administrative expenses (Note 11) 627,476

1,780,363

There was no indication of impairment of property, plant and equipment held by the Company at 31 December
2020. The Company’s leasehold land and building, plant. equipment and machinery have been used as security
for loan and overdraft facility held with EXIM Bank and GCB Bank Limited.

15b. Disposal of property, plant and equipment

2020

GH¢
Cost 349,408
Accumulated depreciation {349.408)
Carrying amount -
Proceeds (83,3500
Profit on disposal 83,350

15¢. Leases

(i) Leases as a lessee

The Company leases land and buildings. The land leases typically run for a period of 50 to %1 years and
buildings for a period of one to two years. For lease of buildings that run for a period of one year, the Company
has elected not to recognise right-of-use and lease liabilities for these leases because they are short-term leases.
During the period, the Company entered into new building lease agreements for its territory warehouses,

(i) Right-of-use asseis

Right-of-use assets are presented as part of property, plant and equipment,

Land Buildings Total
GH¢ GH¢ GHg
Balance at 19 December 2019 10,023,105 214,587 10,237,692
Additions to right-of-use assets - 80,931 80,931
Depreciation for the period (272,120} {70,091) (342,211)
Balance at 31 December 2020 9,750,985 225,427 9,976,412
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15c. Leases
(ii) Amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss

2020

GH¢
Interest on lease liabilities 14,911
Expenses relating to short-term leases 89,562
(iii) Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows

GH¢
Total cash outflow for leases* 40,008
(iv) Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial

position at 31 December
Balance at beginning 174,273
Interest on lease liabilities 14,911
Payments made (40,008)
Balance at 31 December 'ITE-!;- I-:a’.';'
Less than one year 40,008
More than one year t'[]".?,lﬁg
149,177

*Shorttermlease andinterest onlease payments are classified as operating activities

Extension options

Some leases of office premises contain extension options exercisable by the Company up to one year
before the end of the non-cancellable contract period. Where practicable, the Company seeks to
include extension options in new leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held
are exercisable only by the Company and not by the lessors. The Company assesses at lease
commencement due date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. The
Company reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is significant
eventor significant changes in circumstances withinits control.

The Company has assessed that all contractual extension options will be exercised and have
therefore included all potential future lease paymentsin the calculation of the lease liability.
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible asset represents trademark on certain brand of drugs acquired by the Cempany and the accounting

software used by the Company.
2020
Software Trademark Total
GH¢ :Hg GH¢
Cost
Balanee at 19 December 2019 714,178 304,677 1.018,855
Additians 26400 - 86,400
At 31 December 800,578 304,677 1,105,255
Amortisation
Balance at 19 December 2019 261,440 304,538 566,028
Charge for the year 143,909 89 143,998
At 31 December 2020 405,349 304,677 710,026
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 395,229 - 395,229
17. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FYOCI
2020
Equily investments at FVOCI GHe
At 19 December 2019 1,927,769
Net change in fair value 448,881
At 3] December 2020 2,416,650

This relates to the value of 374,955 ordinary shares in Stanbic Bank Ghana Limited. These equity securities
represent investments that the Company intends to hold for long term strategic purposes.

No dividend income was received during the period.
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18. INVENTORIES

2020

GH¢

Raw materials and packaging 8,671,909
Work in progress 175,834
Finished goods 3,202,955
Consumable spares 1,595,052
13,645,760

At 31 December 2020, there were no inventories pledged as security. The amount of inventory recognized in
cost of sales amounted to GHg 24,072,098, The written-down values of raw materials, work in progress,
finished goods and packaging included in cost of sales amounted to GHg 1,134,360, [nventory items are
written down when they expire. No reversal of write-down was recognised during the period.

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2020

GHy

Trade receivables 11,052,914
Other receivables 886,022
Prepayments 547,206
5tafT receivables 1,220,785
13,715,929

The maximum amount due from stafl during the year attributable to the Com pany amounted to GHg 1,229,785,

Credit and market risks, and impairment lasses
Information about the Company's exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for tradc
receivables is included in Note 23,

20, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK OVERDRAFT

2020

GHg
Bank Balance 598,660
Cash balance 38,684
Cash and cash equivalents in statement of financial position 637,344
Bank overdrafts* (3,596.337)
Cash and cash equivalents in statement of cash flows (4,958,997)

*Included in bank overdrafts are credit facilides of GHe 6,000,000 at the rate of 10% obtained from GOB
Bank Limited that arc used to finance working capital and importation of raw materials. These facilities are
payable on demand and expire 12 months from the date of disbursement,
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21, LOANS AND BORROWINGS

, 2020
Current GH¢
Exim Bank - Ghana 2

al 2.861,042
GCRB Bank Limited Loan 1,247 850
4. 108,892
MNoan- Current )
Exim Bank — Ghana 1 7
4,187,474
GCB Bank Limited Loan 10,468 ‘-‘;6

14,656,190

e

f:l'fﬂrmﬂﬁﬂﬂ about the Company's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liguidity risks is included in
Note 25. ki
Terms and debt repayment schedule

Nominal
interest Year of Face Carrying
Currency rate  maturity value amount
2020 2020
GHe GH¢
Exim Loan (Restructured) (a) GHe 8% 2023 7,048,316 7,048,516
GCB Bank Ltd Loan (b) GH¢ 10% 2025 11,716,566 11,716,566
Zenith Edaif Loan ( ci) GHg 12.5% 2020 - -
Zenith Edaif Loan (cii) GH¢ 12.5% 2021 - -

18,765,082 18,765,082

(a) This is GH¢ 11,250,000 and GH¢6,000,000 loan facilities obtained by the old entities from
Exim Bankin April 2018 and November 2018. The purpose ofthe loan isto augment
working capital and to refinance existing loans. This loan was restructured in April 2020.
Theloan was secured by amortgage over the Ayrton Drugs commercial property.

(b) This isa GH¢ 11,426,718 loan facility obtained from GCB Bank Limited in July 2020. The
purpose of the loan is to refinance outstanding loans with GCB Bank Limited, Zenith Bank
Ghana Limited and Ecobank Ghana Plc. The loan was secured by a mortgage 9ver the
processing plant, Starwin Commercial Property and Ayrton Drugs Property.

© This is GH¢4,080,333 and GH¢3,026,058 loan facility obtained from Zenith Bank (Ghana)
Limited through EDAIF in December 2013 and May 2014 respectively. The loan was
secured by a legal mortgage over the factory premises. These loans were refinanced and
paid off by the GCB Bank Limited Loan obtained during the period.
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Reconciliation of movemnenis of liabilities o cash flows arising from financing activities

Opening Capital Finance  Imterest Closing
balance  Additions repayment eost paid balance
GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Exim Loan (restructured) 8,466,223 (1,775,522} 796,645  (438,831) 7048516

GCB Bank Ltd Loan - 11.428,718 < 641,635 (351,787) 11,716,566
Zenith EDAIF Loan 1,664,312 - (1.664,312) [97.044 (1970440 -
GCB Bank Ltd Disbursement 3,773,635 - (3,773.635) 866,044 (866,044) -
Lease facility 29,225 - (29,225) 3,520 (3,520) -

13,933,395 11,426,718 (7,242,694)  2,504,B88 (1,857,226) 18,765,082

= ESainnc ——m—

2. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2020
GH¢

Trade payables 6,228,608
Other payables 3334632
**Accrued expenses 4,341,930

13,905,177

EalE——————

** Included in balance is GH¢ 1,491,390 relating to accrued unpaid leave as at period end,

Information about the Company's expasure fo currency and liquidity risks is included in Note 25,
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23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION

(i) Other long term benefits
Long service award is an unfunded scheme to reward staff for their continuous and
dedicated service to the Company. Staff who serve for ten years and above are awarded
with cash donations. The plan is not funded. The awards vary depending on the number of
years served by employees who meet the qualifying criteria.

(ii) End of Service
It is a defined benefit scheme to provide employees with a lump sum on retirement,
resignation or death having served the Company for a minimum of ten ( 10) years. End of
Service Benefitis not funded.

For the above schemes, afullandindependent actuarial valuation was carried out atthe end
of the period using the Projected Unit Credit Method inaccordance with IAS 19revised.

Long service End of Net defined
award service liability
Balance at 19 December 2019 1,780,546 2,404,642 4,185,188
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 236,117 168,245 404,362
Interest cost 235414 330,714 566,128
471,531 408,959 970,490
Included in OCI
Remeasurement loss/{gain):
Actuarial loss arising from financial assumptions .797 21,961 29,758
Actuarial gain arising from other sources (309,618) (267.834) (377.452)
(301,821) (245,873) (547,694)
Other
Benefits paid (227,436) - (227.436)
Balance at 31 December 2020 1,722,820 2,657,728 4 380,548
Represented by:
End of service benefit 1.722,820
Long service awards 2,657,728
4 380,548
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The actuarial assumptions at the period-end were as follows:

Discoun! rals 1 6%

Salary inflalion 12%
Withdrawal rates (See table below):

Age

Less than 30 Males Females
Less than 30 3% %
Ape 301t 39 4% 4%%

Age 40 1o 49 3% 3%
Age 30t 60 2% 2%
Greater than 60 e (%%

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonable changes at the reporting date to the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the employee benefit obligations by the amounts shown below:

End of service benefits Long service awards

2020 2020 2020 2020

Increasc Decrease Increase Decrease

GH¢ GHg GI¢ GH¢

Discount rate (1% movemen) 2,405,042 2,950,294 1,629,008 1,826,978
Withdrawal rate (10% movement) 2,582,788 - 1,685,077 -
Salary rate (1% movement) 2,960,013 2,393 454 1,830,204 [,624,674
Mortality (1% movement) 2,363,972 - 1.61 3.:439 =

Although _1hc analysis dues not take account of the full distribution of cash flow expected under the plan, it
does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown

24, SHARE CAPITAL ANDRESERVES

Share capital
The authorised shares of the company are 500,000,000 ordinary shares of no par value. The shares

areissued as follows:

No. of shares Amount
2020 2020
GH¢
Proceeds from issues for cash 84,765,899 33,058,701

Holders of these shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share of general meetings of the Company.

There are noshares intreasury or unpaid liability on any shares. Additionally, there are no called-
up shares.

Fair valuereserve
The fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity securities

designated at FVOCI.
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Retained earnings

Retained earnings comprises the net amount after the equity share exchange as part of the merger
arrangement between Dannex Limited, Ayrton Drugs Manufacturing Limited and Starwin Products
Limited and the accumulated loss from the current period and gain from the re-measurement of
employee benefit obligations.

Based on the share exchangeratio of 3.13 Ayrton Shares for 1 Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc Share,
12.50 Starwin Shares for 1 Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc Shares and 1 Dannex Shares for 1 Dannex
Ayrton StarwinPlcShares, the following shares were issued:

e ToStarwinshareholders: atotal of 5,959,808 Dannex Ayrton StarwinPlc shares
e ToAyrton shareholders:atotalof 31,962,142 Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc shares
e ToDannex Plcshareholders: atotal of 46,843,949 Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plcshares

Therefore, the total number of issued shares of the merged entity was 84,765,899 shares. The
entitlement list for all shareholders of the three (3) companies as at the book closure date was
prepared by the financial advisor and sponsoring broker and verified by NTHC Registrars.

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Accounting classification and fair values of financial instruments
The table below sets out the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial
assets and liabilities including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair
value information for financial assets and liabilities whose carrying amountis areasonable
approximation of fair value

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of
fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company
regularly reviews significantunobservableinputs and valuation adjustments.

The Company recognised transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
thereporting period duringwhich the change hasoccurred.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and
financial Lliabilities, including their levels in fair value hierarchy. It does notinclude fair value
information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the
carrying amountis areasonable approximation of fair value. The loans and borrowings are
repayable on demand andthe face value of the receivables is aclose approximation of its
fairvalue.
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Carrying amount

Amortised Other Total
FYOCI cost financial
liabilities
GHg GH¢ GH¢ GHg¢
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity Investment at FVOCI 2,416,650 - - 2.416.650
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables (note 19) ! - 13,168,723 - 13,168,723
Cash and cash equivalents (note 20) - 598,660 - 598,660
Amount due from related party (note 26) 263,753 263,753
- 14,031,136 14,031,134

Financial lizbilities not measured at fair value

Bank overdraft (note 20) - - 5,596,337 5,596,337
Loans and borrowings (note 21) - - 18,765,082 18,765,082
Trade and other payables (note 22)2 - - 12,346,451 12,346,451
Amount due to related party (note 26) 1137914 1,137,914

- - 37,845,784 37,845,784

| — Excluded from trade and other receivables is prepayment of GHg547,206,
2 ~ Excluded from trade and other payables are statutory taxes payable of GH¢1,558.726.

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢
FVOCI
Equity Investment at FVOCI - 2,416,650 - 2,416,650
Measurement of fair values

Type Valuation technique
Financial instruments Equity This is determined by reference
Measured at fair value securities to their unquoted prices in observable

markets at the reporting date

Financial instruments not Other The valuation model considers

measured at fair value finameial the present value of future
Liabilities/assets cashflows, discounted at the
ol amortised cost market rates of interest

at the reporting date
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(b) Financial risk management

Overview

On 20 January 2020, the World Health Organisation (WHO) declared an international health
emergency due to the outbreak of a novel coronavirus, which originated in December 2019 in Hubei,
China. WHO declared the coronavirus outbreaktobe a pandemicon 11 March 2020in recognition of
its rapid spread across the globe, with over 150 countries, including Ghana and other African
countries affected.

The outbreak of COVID-19 and the necessary containment measures, which include travel bans,
quarantines and social distancing protocols, have resulted in disruption of business and economic
activity globally. At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, Dannex Ayrton Starwin
PLC is operating as normal. The ultimate severity of the COVID 19 outbreak on the Company's
operations was minimal. The Company did not alter its financial risk management framework

The Company has exposure to the followingrisks arising from financial instruments:

e Creditrisk
e Liquidity risk
e Marketrisk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Company's management of capital.

I. Risk management framework
The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

The Company's risk management policies are established toidentify and analyse risks faced
by the Company, to set appropriate limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through training and
established management standards and procedures, aims to maintain adisciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Company's Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Company's risk management policies and procedures and review the adequacy of the risk
management frameworkinrelationtorisks faced by the Company.

The Company's Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal
Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

(e) Financial risk management

i Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meetits contractual obligations and arises principally from
the Company'sreceivables from customers andinvestment securities.
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Trade and other receivables

The Company's exposure to risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer, the industry and country in which the customers operate. In monitoring customer credit
risk, customers are grouped accordingto their credit characteristics; including whether they are
open market customers (wholesalers, retailers) orinstitutional customers.

The Company has credit control policies which cover procedures for accepting new customers,
setting credit limits, dealing with overdue amounts and delinquent payers. Credit exposure ontrade
receivableis covered by customersissuing post-dated cheques to cover amount owed. The Company
does notrequire collateralinrespect of trade and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Includedin the Company and Company's cash and cash equivalents are cash and balances held with
Banks. The cash and cash equivalents (except for cash on hand) are held with banks with the requisite
authorisation to carry on the business of banking. These are thus deemed to have relatively low
defaultrisks.

Amount due from related party

The Company's exposure to credit risk in respect of the amounts due from related parties is
minimised. The Company has transacted business with related parties over the years and there has
been no defaultsin payment of outstanding debts. No impairment has been recognised with respect to
amounts due fromrelated partiesinthe current period.

Exposure to creditrisk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposuretocreditrisk atthe reporting date was:

2020

GH¢
Trade receivables (Note 19) 11,052,916
Amount due from related party (Note 26 (b(i))) 263,753
Other receivables (Note 19) 886,022
Cash and Bank (Note 20) 508,660
Staff receivables 1,229, 785

14,031,136

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer was:

2020

GHg

Open Market 0.905 94;
[nstitutions 1,1 #61956
11,052.916
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Credit quality of financial assets and impairment losses
The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

2020

GHy¢

Meither past due nor impaired 7,366,865
Past due 1- 60 days 2,729,430
Past due 61-120 days 563,127
Past due 121-182 days 250,664
Past due greater than 182 days 2,067.965
12,978,051

Expected credit loss assessment for receivable as at 31 December 2020

The company uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of its trade receivables,

Loss rates are calculated using a “roll rate™ method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through
successive stages of delinguency to write-off. Roll rates are calculated separately for exposures in different
segments, that is Open Market Customers and NHIA Accredited Customer.

The loss rate for Regional Medical Stores Customers is based on the Government of Ghana default rate as
published by Moody’s credit rating agency.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as
at 31 December 2020,

OPEN MARKET CUSTOMERS
Weighted Gross Carrying Loss Allowance Credit
average loss  Amount Impaired
rate
Current (not past due) 31.63% 6,927,979 (251,554) Mo
1-60 days past due 6.14% 2,502,576 (153,771) No
61-120 days past due 10.96% 458,870 (50,306) Na
121-182 days past due 21.13% 111,656 (23,596) Mo
More than 183 days past due  58.20% 020,857 (536,762) Yes
10,921,938 (1,015,989
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INSTITUTIONAL CUSTOMERS
NHIA ACCREDITED
INSTITUTIONS
Weighted Gross Carrying Loss Allowance Credit
average loss Amount Impaired
rate
Current (not past due) 17.89% 274,499 (49.118) Na
[-60 days past due 21.43% 123,195 (26,401) Mo
61-120 days past due 24.69% 104,257 (25,741) No
121-182 days past due 27.22% 125,074 (34,051) No
183-243 days past due 36.63% 81.869 (25,993} Mo
244 -304 days past dus 42.85% 25,174 (10,788) No
305-365 days past due 60,10% - No
More than 365 days 100% 705,946 (705,946) Yes
past due
1,440,014 (882,038)
REGIONAL MEDICAL
STORES
Current (not past due) 4,4% 616,099 (27,108)
TOTAL 12,978,051 (1,925,135)
Impairment losses on financial assets recognised in profit and loss were as follows:
2020
GH¢
Impairment gain on trade receivables (284,504)
Impairment loss on staff receivables 215,769
(68,785)

fiii)  Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to hold cash and cash equivalents and maintain undrawn
committed facilities at a level sufficient to ensure the Company has available funds to meet its liabilities as
they become due.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments:

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Gmnths More than
31 December 2020 amount Total or less 6-12mths 12 mths
GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢
Mon-derivative financial liability
Bank overdraft 5,596,337 5,596,337 5,596,337 - -
Secured loans and borrowings 18,765,082 19,358,221 - 4108892 15249320
Trade and other payables 12,346,451 12,346,451 12,346,451 - -

36,707,870 37,301,009 17,942,788 4,108,892 15249329

= S ===mmme=
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{el) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments,

Foreign exchange risk

The Company imports raw materials and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the United States Dollar, British Pound, Forei gn exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, and recognised assets and liabilities,

Management's policy to manage foreign exchange risk is to hold foreign currency bank accounts which acts
as a natural hedge for purchases of imported raw materials.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows. This is based on the carrying amount for
maonetary financial instruments,

GBP EUR UsD
Cash and cash equivalents - 270 1,823
Trade payables (6.463)  (114,785)  (514,833)
Net exposure (6.463)  (114,515) (513,010

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the period and at the period end.

Average Period end
GHg 2020 2020
GBP | 74711 81104
ELR | 6.6370 7.2004
UsD | 5.7965 3.9200

Sensitivity analysis

The following table shows the effect of a stren gsthening or weakening of GH¢ against all other currencies on
the Company and Company’s equity and profit or loss.

This sensitivity analysis indicates the potential impact on equity and profit, or loss based upon the foreign
currency exposures recorded at 31 December (See “currency risk™ above) and it does not represent actual or
future gains or losses.

The sensitivity analysis is based on the percentage difference between the highest exchange rate and the
average exchange rate per currency recorded in the course of the respective financial period.
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A strengthening (weakening) of the GHE, by the rates shown in the table, against the followin £ currencics at
31 December would have increased (decressed) equity and profit er loss by the amounts shown below.

This analysis assumes that al] other variables, in particular interest rates. remain constant.

As of
31 December 2020
In (3H¢ Predit or Loss
/Equiry impact; Profit or
e Strengthening Loss
Change | /Equity
J impact:
Weakening
Ls3 10 {303,702} 303,702 |
GRP =10 - (5.242) | 5242
Furn +10 (B3.380) £3589

Faquity price risk

Sensirivity analysis

For investments classified as fair value th rough other comprehensive income, a3 percent increase in the equity
prices at the reporting date would have inereased equity by the amounits shown below. An equal change in the

opposite direction would also decresse equity by the armounts shown below,

2020
GHy¢

Lquity 72,500

—==

The analysis assumes that all other varighles remain canstanr.

Interest rate risk
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instrument

The Company does not account for the fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not impact profit or loss.

At the reporting date, the Company did not have any interest bearing financial instruments with a variable

interest rate.
Carrying amounts
GH¢
Fixed rate instruments
Bank overdraft 5,596,337
Loans and borrowings 18,765,082
24,361,419
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26, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Ownership Structure

Dannex Ayrton Starwin Ple is 60% owned by Equatorial Cross Acquisitions Limited (ECA), 15% owned by
Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT). The remaining 25% is owned by a number of individual

shareholders. Shareholding information disclosed at Note 32.

(h) Outstanding balances arising from related party transactions

L Amaount due from related parties
2020
GH¢
Equatorial Cross Acquisitions 263,753
This balance is mainly made up of vehicles purchased for the Board Chairman.
iL. Amount due to related parries
Equatorial Cross Acquisitions 1,137,914

This relates to an amount due to Adcock Ingram

There are no terms to the related partv transactions, and they are not secured,

{e) Transactions with key management personnel

i Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company directly or indirectly including any Directar (whether executive or
otherwise) of the Company.

Key management personnel compensation included the following:

2020
GH¢
Short-term employee benefits
Executive Directors 3188421
Non-Executive Directors 139,000
Other key management personnel 1,577.451
4,904,872
Owher Long-term employee benefits
Executive Directors and key management staff 199,810
Total employee benefit 3,104,682
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ii. Key management personnel transactions
i. There isa personal guarantee by Nik Amarteifio, the Board Chairman of the company as
collateral forobtainingthe GCB Bank Limited loan facility.

The company has anapproved scheme with Ecobank Ghana for management, an amount
of GHS 438,608 has beendrawn down.

(d) Other related party transactions

i. An amount of GH¢ 483, 163 was paid to Mr. Yaw Opare-Asamoah, a former Managing
Director of Dannex Limited as outstanding payments owed.

i, Alex Bonney, amember of the Board, provides HR consultancy services for the Company,
anamountof GH¢ 121,892 was paid to him during the period as consultancy fees.

(e) Directors’ shareholding

The Directors named below held the following number of shares in the company as at 31 December 2020;

Name of Director No. of shares %o of issued capital

e Nik Amarteifio (ECA) * 50,891,061 60.0

e Amarteckor Amarteifio 3.207.604 38
54,098,665 63.8

*Shares held through Equatorial Cross Acquisitions.

27, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company had no commitments for capital expenditure at the reporting date,

28. CONTINGENTLIABILITIES

A labour suit filed by two plaintiffs contesting their summary dismissal and termination of
appointment respectively by the Defendant ("Starwin"- now DAS Plc). The case of the
plaintiffs is that their dismissal and termination of appointment by DAS Plc was wrongful.
They are therefore praying the Court to award damages and cost against DAS Plc in respect
of same. Apart from damages and cost, the second plaintiff is also praying the Court to order
DAS Plc to pay the sum of GH¢14,805.95 being allowances due him for serving as acting
Managing Director, the sum of GH¢5,833.97 being one month salary in lieu of notice and the
monetary value of 100 litres of fuel (approximately GH¢430.00) which ought to have been
supplied tohimby DAS Plc but was not.

All pretrial proceedings have been completed and trial is yet to commence.

Intheeventthatthecourt delivers Judgmentinfavour of the Plaintiffs, the Company may be
ordered by the Court to pay an approximately two years' salary to each of the Plaintiffs as
damages; implying that the second Plaintiff may be awarded a total of the sums of money
aforementioned and a maximum of two years' salary.
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29. CAPITALMANAGEMENT
The Company's policy is to develop a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence andto sustain future development of the business.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of adjusted net debt to equity ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted netdebt isdefined astotal liabilities less cash andcash equivalents.
Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity as shown inthe statement of financial
position.

Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes
thisapproach giventhe size of the Company isreasonable.

The adjusted net debt to equity ratio for the Company at 31 Decemberis as follows:

2020

GH¢
Total liabilities 45,510,879
Less: cash and cash equivalents (637,344)
Net debt 44 873,535
Total equity 6,785,639
Net debt to total equity 6.61

30. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic EPS has been based on the following profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding,

2020
GHg¢
Loss attributable to equity holders (5,158,244)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (Note 24) 84,765,899
Basic/Diluted earnings per share (0.0609)

At the reporting date, the basic earnings per share was the same as diluted eamings per share as there were no
Fﬁutstandmg shares on conversion which could increase the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
155UE,
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31 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments reflect the Company’s management structure and the way financial information is
regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer. Operating segments are reported in & manner consistent
with internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company operates as a single business unit that manufactures Syrups, Tablets, Creams, Suspension,
Disinfectant, Lozenges, Powders, Capsules and Emulsion.

Revenue by Products

2020
GH¢
Syrups 34,240,856
Tablets 17,721,256
Creams 5,078,030
Suspensions 3,157,813
Disinfectants 13,960
Powders 5,024,351
Capsules 563,549
Emulsions 116,453
65,918,268
Geographical information

Dannex Ayrton Starwin Ple sells its products only in Ghana
Revenue
2020
GH¢
In Ghana 63,918,268

No individual customer contributed 10% or more to revenue. Segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers, whilst segment asset is based on the geographical location of the assets.

The Company’s non-current assets amounting to GH¢ 24,033,732 are in Ghana.

Major Customer

There was no revenue for transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10% of the Company’s
total revenue during the period.
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32, SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION

(i) Number of Shares in issue

Earnings and dividend per share are based on 84,765,899 weighted aversge number of ordinary shares in issue
during the period.

(ii) Number of Sharcholders

The company had 84,765,899 ordinary shares at 31 December 2020 distributed as follows:

Holding No. of Holders Total Y
Holding Holding

L1000 7.713 1,897,600 22
1001-5000 660 1,339,515 1.6
5001-10000 64 363,948 0.6
10007 and ever 34 81,064,827 95.6
8321 84,765,899 100

— ="

DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(iti)  List of twenty shareholders as at 31 December 20210

Name of shareholder No. of shares % of issued capital
»  Equatorial Cross Acquisitions (ECA) 50,891,061 60,0
*  Social Security and National Insurance Trust 14,525,554 17.1
*  Yaw Opare-Asamoah 6,546,035 T3
s Amarteokor Amarteifio 3.207.604 38
*  Mirfield Properties 1,621,318 1.9
*  Jacob Amekor Blukoo-Allotey 394,485 0.5
*  Worldwide Securities Limited 233,362 0.4
e  Starwin Products Limited 202,490 0.2
= E.H. Booehene Foundation 198.041 0.2
* International Central Gospel Church — Christ Temple 166,400 0.2
e Teachers Fund 142,852 0.2
e Sylvia Stella Amissah 113,298 0.1
¢  Comfort Asiedu 106,811 0.1
*  Godfried Ampofo 106,811 0.1
*  Albert Gyang Boohene 100,385 0.1
=  Estate of Bernard Forson 08,043 0.1
®  Estate of P.LA Quaye 87,672 0.1
»  Worldwide Securities Ltd Trust A/C 87.636 0.1
= Starwin Trust Fund 86,782 0.1
=  Estate of Patrick Okai 77,386 0.1
REPORTED TOTALS 78,004,025 93.1
NOT REPORTED 5,771,874 6.9
B4, 765,899 100

{iv) Directors’ sharcholding

The Directors named below held the following number of shares in the Company as at 31 December 2020;

Name of Director No. of shares % of issued capital
*  Nik Amarteifio (ECA)* 50.891.061 60.0
*  Amarteokor Amarteifio 3,207,604 3.8
54,098,665 63.8
L . — — —— ] . —— -

*Shares held through Equatorial Cross Acquisitions.
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33. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Events subsequent to the reporting date are reflected in the financial statementsonly to
the extent that they relate directly to the financial statements and the effect is material.
There were no events after 31 December 2020 that require disclosure in the financial
statements.

34. MERGER OF DANNEX LIMITED, AYRTON DRUG MANUFACTURING LIMITED AND
STARWINPRODUCTS LIMITED
On 7 June 2018, the Boards of Dannex Limited, Ayrton Drug Manufacturing Limited and
Starwin Products Limited announced that they had agreed to the terms of a recommended
merger of the three companies to be effected by way of a Ghanaian Scheme of
Amalgamation under Section 231 to 23 5 of the Companies Act 1963 (Act 179). On the
conclusion of the Merger, the Merged Company will be known as Dannex Ayrton StarwinPlc.

Shareholders of Ayrton Drug Manufacturing Limited and Starwin Products Limited at
their separate extraordinary general meetings held on 27 December 2018 agreed to the
Scheme of Amalgamation while inthe case of Dannex Limited, its shareholders endorse the
arrangement on 30 January 2019.The High Court of Justice (Commercial Division)
subsequently confirmed the merger on 25 November 2019.

The merger, which has brought about the new entity-Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc has been
approved by the Ghana Stock Exchange (GSE) and the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). Pursuant to the merger, the Companies have transferred their total
assets and total liabilities at book values to the newly merged entity effective 19 December
2019. Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc was listed on the Ghana Stock Exchange on 15
January 2020.

Thetable below shows theassets and liabilities the entities transferred to the new entity:

!_Captinn Dannex | Ayrton Starwin | Total | Consolidated

Non-Current Assets | 26,106,827 l 6,490,673 2,655,993 35,253,493 | 32,488 857

Current Assets 17,935,301 l 27637604 | 22362,108 | 67,935,013 | 28,621,501

MNon-Current [ z g
Liabilities (10,130,537 10,130,537 | 13,876,553

| Current Liabilities | (39,624,800) | (18,914,783) | (9,243,908) | (67.783.491) | 25,795,423 J
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PROFILE ON NEW BOARD MEMBERS

KWASI YIRENKYI

Mr. Kwasi Yirenkyi has served as a Managing Director of Starwin
Products Limited between November 2007 and July 2015. Prior
to that, he was a Non-Executive Director of the Company
between March 2005 and November 2007.

He has about 20 years of business operations experience.He
previously worked with Merchant Bank Ghana Limited, now
Universal Merchant Bank as a senior corporate manager.

He has also worked with Deloitte and Touche Consulting Ghana
and Empretec Ghana. Kwasi is on the boards of Opportunity
International Savings and Loans Limited and the SSNIT Guest
House Company Limited.

Heis a product of George Mason University and the Southern New
Hampshire University, both in the United States of America.

HENRY OTU OCANSEY

Mr. Henry Otu Ocansey holds an Executive MBA in Finance
(LEGON) andB.Sc Adminin (Accounts/Finance) from (GIMPA).

Henry joined Dannex in 2000, as a Management Accountant and
was appointed Chief Accountant in 2004 and Head of Finance in
2006.

Prior to his joining Dannex Limited he worked with Pharmaplast
Limited initially as a Cost Accountant and later as a Management
Accountant.

He is a seasoned, experienced executive in the General
Management field, an Accountant with a background in
Commercial, Audit Management and Finance.

MR.BEN AGYEMAN

Mr. Ben Agyeman has over 25 years of working experience in the financial industry, particularly in
Private Equity/Venture Capital, Mergers & Acquisitions and Project Finance in developing
markets. He was a Managing Director of MPC Capital AG (Hamburg), a German based global
Private Equity manager of real assets, with assets under management of over 4bn euros. Heis an
expert in equity and structured investments as well as infrastructure transactions. He was a
former Investment Director at Gulf Finance House, based in the Kingdom of Bahrainin the Middle
East.

Before that, Ben was an Investment Banker at UBS AG and prior to that a Technology Business
Analyst at Lehman Brothers International. He is currently a Senior Advisor to Kreen Energy Ltd,
UK. He holds an MBA from Columbia Business School in New York, USA and a B.Eng. (Hons)
Electronic/Electrical Engineering from London South Bank University in the UK.
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PROXY FORM

For use by Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held virtually
on 4th November, 2021 at 10.30am (GMT)

I/We, (Note 1) of being the
holder(s) of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc Shares, hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting (Note 2)
as my/our proxy to act for me/us at the Annual General Meeting
(the “AGM") to be held virtually on 4th November, 2021 at 10:30am (GMT) for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, approving the proposed resolutions referred to in the notice convening
such meeting. At the AGM (and every adjournment thereof), the proxy is to vote for me/us on my
behalf for or against the resolutions to be proposed at the EGM (and at any adjournment thereof) as
indicated below.

IMPORTANT: Please indicate with an “X" in the appropriate box opposite the resolution how you
wish your vote to be cast.

RESOLUTION FOR AGAINST

1. Toreceive and adoptthe Reports of the
Directors, the Auditors and the Financial
Statements for the period ended 31st December, 2020

2. To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Auditors.

3(a). That the Directors of the Company be and are hereby
empowered:

I.) to exercise the powers to borrow an amount up to Six
Million United States Dollars (US$6 Million) or its cedi
equivalent from GCB Bank Limited which amount is in
excess of the company’s stated capital.

ii) the Terms and conditions of the Banking facilities as
contained in the Credit Facility Agreement dated 18th
August 2021 circulated among shareholders are hereby
approved.

i)  to appoint authorized signatory or signatories to do all
acts and things so as to carry into effect the purposes of
the foregoing Resolution and to authorize and direct the
due execution of all other documents to be entered into
pursuant thereto and to take all action required for the
exercise by the Company of its rights and the
performance of its obligations under the Loan.

b)  That this borrowing by the Company in excess of the
Stated Capital is for the duration of the facilities which
expires on 29th June 2026 and supports any interim
renewals of any of the facilities within the said time
frame.
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4. Toappoint Mr.Henry Ocansey as a Director

5. Toappoint Mr.KwasiYirenkyias a Director

6. Toappoint Mr.Benjamin Agyeman as a Director

Fullname(s) and address(s) to beinsertedin BLOCK CAPITALS.

Dated 2021 Signature

To facilitate arrangements for AGM, please tick here (without commitment on your part) if you
propose to attend the AGM (having not appointed a proxy above) or if your proxy is to attend the
meeting on your behalf.

This form of proxy should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Circular which contain
importantinformation regarding Dannex Artyon Starwin Plc.

Notes:

2. If any person other than the Chairman is to be appointed as proxy, strike out the words “the
Chairman of the Meeting”, add the name and address of the proxy preferred in the blank space
provided and initial the alteration. The person to whom this proxy is given need not be a
shareholder of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc but must attend the said meeting in person to
represent you. Appointment of a proxy will not prevent a shareholder from attending and
voting at the Meeting (or any adjournment thereof) in person.

3. Inthe case of joint shareholders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person
or by proxy will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint shareholders. For
this purpose, seniority is determined by the order in which the names stand in the Dannex
Ayrton Starwin Plc Register in respect of the joint holding. In the case of a corporation, this
proxy must be given under its common seal or be signed on its behalf by an attorney or officer
duly authorized.

4, In order to be valid, this form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or a copy of such authority certified notarially or in some other way
approved by the directors of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc must be duly executed and deposited
at the offices of NTHC Registrars, 18 Gamel Nasser Avenue, Ringway Estates, P. 0. Box KIA
9563, Airport, Accra, Ghana not later than 2nd November, 2021. FAILURE TO DEPOSIT THE
FORM OF PROXY AS REQUIRED WILL RESULT IN YOUR PROXY APPOINTMENT BEING
INVALID.

5. Any alterations made to this form of proxy should be initiated by the person who signsiit.
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6. Please indicate with an “X” how you wish to cast your vote. Unless instructed, the proxy will
vote, or abstain from voting, at his or her discretion. On any motion to amend the above
resolutions, to propose a new resolution, to adjourn the AGM, or any other motion put to the
AGM (other than to approve the above resolutions), the proxy will act at his/her/their
discretion.

SPECTALNOTE: YOU ARE REQUESTED TO SIGN AND DATE THE ABOVE FORM OF PROXY.
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